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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF DS TOLL ROAD LIMITED
Report on the IndAS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying IndAS financial statements of DS TOLL ROAD LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Change in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “IndAS financial statements).

Management’s Responsibility for the IndAS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these IndAS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs, profit, cash flows and change in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standard (IndAS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of themaccounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IndAS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this IndAS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provision of the act and
the rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the IndAS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IndAS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the IndAS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IndAS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the IndAS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’'s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the IndAS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the IndAS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid IndAS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the IndAS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its loss, its cash
flows and the change in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2016 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2015 included in these standalone IndAS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the us, whose report for the year ended
31st March 2016 and 31st March 2015 dated 14t May 2016 and 18t May 2015 respectively expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the IndAS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 we give in the “Annexure A”
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

{c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
change in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IndAS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued thereunder.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended by Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2017, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor -
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its IndAS financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November,
2016 to 30 December, 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company. Refer Note 35 to the IndAS financial statements.

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000038N

-

C. V. Parameswar
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: 14/04/2017 Membership No. 11541
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ANNEXURE-A
DS TOLL ROAD LIMITED
Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report for the period ended March 2017
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the Heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Report of even date)

(i) Fixed Assets

a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situtation of its fixed assets.

b) As explained and information given to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management in phased manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size
& nature of the company. No material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

c) Title deeds of immovable assets are held in the name the company.

(ii) Inventories

There were no inventory lying as on 31.03.2017, accordingly, the provisions of clause (ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

(iii) Loans given

The Company has not granted any Secured or unsecured loan to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under clause 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) does not arise.

(iv) Compliance of Sec. 185 & 186

The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments, guarantee and
security whigh attracts compliance to provisions of section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
and therefore, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(v) Public Deposit

During the year, the company has not accepted any deposits from the public, and therefore,
paragraph 3 (v) of the order is not applicable.

(vi) CostRecords

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
specified accounts and records have been made and maintained.

—



41018371
Stamp


(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Statutory Dues

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has generally been regular in depositing its undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State insurance, income-tax, Sales-Tax,
Wealth Tax, Service tax, value added tax and cess etc. except in some cases in deposition of
TDS & Service Tax liability during the year. There are no undisputed dues payable,
outstanding as on 31st March, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts in respect of
income tax, service tax etc. that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institutions,
banks, government or dues to debenture holders.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instrument) any term loans during the period under audit therefore, paragraph 3 (ix) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management,
we report that no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the company by its officers or employees ‘
has been noticed or reported during the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the
management , no managerial remuneration has been paid or provided and hence not commented
upon;

As explained, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

In our opinion , all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and
Section 188-f the Companies Act , 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statement as required by the applicable accouting standards.

Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially
convertible debenture during the year under review. Therefore, clause (xiv) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

As per the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not entered
into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him. Therefore paragraph
3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.
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(xvi) As per the information and explanations given by the management, company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore paragraph 3
(xvi) of the order is not applicable to the company.

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000038N
, | )

/

C. V. Parameswar
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: 14/04/2017 Membership No. 11541
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ANNEXURE-B

THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DS
TOLL ROAD LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DS TOLL ROAD LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of 31 March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the IndAS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to-,.
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in condltlons or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March, 2017, based on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India”.

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000038N

C. V. Parameswar
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: 14/04/2017 Membership No. 11541
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DS Toll Read Limited

Balanco Sheot
T Milliong
As at A al As al
Fartieiliars Note  sistMarch, 2017 31sl March, 2018 Agril 1, 2015
ASSETS
MNon-current essets
(a) Intangible assats 4 2,960,03 3,104 87 3,047 56
(b Intangible assels under doveloprment 4 - B.0OS 328
[G] Fmancel Assols
- Other Financial Asseis ofF 1.51 1.51 51.59
(e} Qther nen - currant assets B 3.21 *an R
2,564.75 3.114.72 3,204.47
Current assets
{g) Financial Azzsts
(i} Inveslmenis Sa 126.16 120,21 113,93
(v} Gash and cash equivalents ] 122,81 T2.00 544
(i) Benk balancag nther than () above G = - 73.80
{iv) Loans il B45.00 G45.00 282300
v} Qther financial azset he 68.43 0 VE OEL 40
() Currant Tax Assats [Nat) 307 8¢9 17 1e
(=] Othar currant assets 7 3.86 4417 24,18
7002 o01.03 411850
Total Assoets 393477 4015 76 742207
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a} Equity share capital 8 52.10 5210 22140
{b] Subordinated debt {in nature of Equity) 8a 468.00 468 00 485040
{c) Cther aquity | 65.41 33.84 | B0.62
Total Eg ity 585.51 553.04 \ B10.72
LIABILITIES
Nan-current liabifities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Bomowings 10 2,845.74 107123 3,228.54
{iiy Other fingnoial Habiliies 12b - 1250 237
(b Provisions 12b 8592 48 91 12.82
() Deferred tax lakdlibes (Net) 30 20.231 12408 56.09
3022497 325672 3,300.81
Current liabilitins
[a} Finarcial Liabilities
(1 Trade payables 1 43.58 Z9.90 414,01
(i} Other financial liabilities 12a 25521 173.24 332
{b) Qther current liabilites 14 2T.48 1.82 2.901.95
[} Provisions 13a 0.03 0.03 162.28
326.30 20510 3,511.44
Total Liabilities 3,349.27 3,461.82 681225
Total Equity and Liabilities 383477 4 015.78  F4F2 5T

The sccompanying summary of significant accounting pohices and other explenatary Informatian (modes] are & integral part ot ihe

Financial Statements.
Az per our glisched report of avan date.
For Thakur Vaidyanath Alyar & Ce.

Charterad Aczcuntants
Firm Reqgn Mo, DDOEEN

.
C W Paramaswar
Fartner

Mambership Mo, 11541

Plevzu. Mumbas
Date: 1ath April 2017

For and on behalf of the board

Keuzhik Mal
[Hractor
(MM D5237230

Frlace: Mumbal
Dheste: 14th Agril 2047

Madary By
Direct
DIN: O7Y3037

Prachi CGupte
Company secrotany
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DS Toll Road Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

I T e t Millions
- . o E Year ended Year endgl
Particulars Mote 21st March, 2047 March 31, 2016
Revenue from Operations 15 614,22 SET.42
Othar incame 16 89.25 6240
Total Income T03.47 645 83
Exponsos
Tell Operation and Maintainence cxpenses 17 158.12 - S
Frapinyes hensfits axpense 18 4.42 3M
Finance cnsis 18 361.09 37471
Amurtization expenae < 144,84 142 69
Clher expenges 20 31.85 32 36
Total expenses 700.32 G.38.58
Profit / {loss) bofors tax 3.15 i1 1.24
Tax oxpense |
Current tax 6.00 -
Dalerred lax chargef{credit) {33.78) BE.01
Income fax for carlior years (D.62) -
(28.40) 68.01
Profit/{Loss) for the parled (1X + XI) 3155 {56.77)

Other Comprehensive Incoma

{i}) Hems that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss :
Remeasuremeants of net dafined 0.01 0.0
benelit plans : Gaing [ (Loss)

{ii) Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of net definad benefit plans 0.00 (0.00)
Other Comprohensive Income | (Loss) 0. {0.01)
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 31.56 {56 TE}

Earnings per equity share of T10 seach
Basic & Diluted 26 6.06 (10.90)

The accompanying summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory informatian (nates) ars an |
integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our attachad report of even dale.

For Thakur Vaidyanath Alyar & Co. For and on bahalf of the hoard
Charered Accountants

Firm Regn. Mo. D0003EN

G Farameswar Kaushik Pal -~ Prachi Gupte
Fartrwer Director Company secrotary
Membership Mo, 11541 DiIN; 05227230

Place: Mumbai Placo: Mumbai

Data: 14th April 2017 Date: 14th April 2017
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0S5 Toll Road Limited
Combined Cash flow Statement

LT e B Millions
. Year ended Year ended
Panicutara 313t March, 2017 March 31, 2016
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before exceptional fems and tax 3.5 11.24
Adiusiments fior,
Aamartisation expense 1dad 54 142 69
Irterast incarme {T5.42) {54.72)
Dividend incomsa (685} (640}
Int&rast expense 361,09 aT4T1
42781 487 51
Cash Generated from Operations betore working Gl.[}ﬂ.'al changes
Adiustronts far,
tnocresseydecreass in financial asssts axcept far invisiments [B.6) 123.88
{increasa)decraass in othar 352618 40,311 [20.00
Increasad(dacraase) in trade payables 13.67 (a4.10
Increasses decrease) in other finencial liabildses 0.41 054
Ineroasad(decroase) in provisions 37.03 131.15)
Enerosseddocrease) in ol current liakbalilies 25.56 (2,500.0%)
110.81 (3.310.75)
Caeh generated from operations B6I8.32 12 B43.7d)
Tawas {paid) net of refunds .64 {1.03)
Mel cash gencerated from operating activities - [A] Eﬂ',"BlEm % {E,Bﬂ4.2“?.;l.
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase/sale proceeds of infangible assels (including mbangible
Beeats under devalopmeant) HA4E 720
Purchasa of curmani invesiments (nel of procesds) - 0oz
Intar corporate deposts repaid 2.823.00
Inter corporate deposits given - (B45.00)
Intarest recaived 14.22 1,014.38
Net cash (used In)  generated from investing activities - [B] 2267 3255 5A
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Ropayment of long term borrowings (159.25) (33.171)
Intarast paid [360.58) [355.613)
Net cash used in financing activities - [C] [518.82) T (38E 74
Net increase/{decreasa) in cash and cash eguivalanis - [A+B+C) 50,81 86 57
Add: Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the year T2.00 543
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12281 7200
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Halances with banks - in Gurrent accounte 12.72 19.96
[repnsits with matunty of less than thrae months 106,50 &0.00
Cash on hand 1.58 2.04
Total Cash and cash equivalents 122.81 F2.00

Node. Thae abow: Slatemenl of Gash Flows has baeen peepared under the 'Indirect Method' 83 set out in Ind AS 7,

'Statarnant of Cash Flows'.

The azcomparying summany of significant acsourting policles and other explanatory information (notes) are an ntegral

part af the Financial Statements.

Ag par our attached raport of svan date

For Thakur Vaidyanath Aiyar & Go,
Chartered Accountants
Fumn Regne Mo, 000028R

C.W. Paramaswar
Partner
Membearship Mo, 11541

Flace Mumbai
Daks. 14th April 2017

For and on behalf of the board

Kaushik Fal
Director
Dik: 05237230

Place Murmbai
Date. 14th April 2017

Frachi (Guple
Company secritary
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D5 Tell Road Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

1
i ¥ Milligns
Ealance et the beginning | Changes In equity Balance al the end of
Note of the year share capital during the year
the year
For the year ended 3150 March, 2014 52.10 - 52.10
For the year ended 313t March, 2017 52.10 - 5210
B. OTHER EQUITY = ¥ Millinns
__Reserves and Surplus |
HNote Retained Earnings Total
{Note 9b)

Ealance at April 01, 2015 a0.82 an.62

Profit for the year {56, 7T} {5677

Other comprehensive income for the year {0.01) ______i041)
Total comprehensiva income for the year (56.78) (56, 78)
Balanca al 31st March 2018 3384 33.84
Balance at April 01, 2016 a3me | 3384 | |

Profit for the year 31.55 31,56

Other comprehensive income far the year 0.01 0.01
Total comprehensive income for the year 31.56 31.56
Balance at 31st March, 2017 65.41 85.41

The accompanying summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Infarmation (notes) are an integral part of the Financial

Statemanis.

As per our ifachad repord of even dala

For Thakur Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000038N

C.V Parameswar
Partner
Membarehip Ma. 11541

Flace: Mumba
Daale: 141 April 2017

For and on behalf of the board

Kaushik Fal
Director
DIN: 05237230

Place: Mumbai
Cate; 14th April 2017

Prachi Gupte
Company secretary
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DS Tell Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate information |

D& Toll Road Limited (the "company”) was awarded on Build, Oparate and Transfar (BOT), the widening
of existing two-lane covering 53.325 krns stretch from Km 373.275 (Start of proposed flyover ',aT Dindugal
Bypass) to- Km 4256.60 (Samayanallore) Section of National Highway Mo.7 in the State of Tamilnadu and
operation and maintenance thereof under the Concession Agreement dated January 30, 2006 with
Mationsl Highways Authorty of India. The Concession Agreement is for 20 years fram the appointed date
stated in clause 1.1 of the said agreement,

MNote 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements of the Company comprizes of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and | nss
Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity, a summary of significanl accouniing -policics,
notes and other explanalory information

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Acl, These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
Il ef the Act, applicatle Ind AS, other applicable pronouncemeants and regulations. These Financial
Statements are the first Financial Statements of the Sompany under Ind AS The Financial Statements up
to year ended 31 March 2016 were presared in accordance with the accounting standards nolifed under
Compames (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain Bssels and
liahilities which have been mesasured at fair value. For the purpose of preparation of these Financial.
Staternents, the transition date o ind AS iz considered as April 1, 2015,

Thesa Financial Statemeants are present=d in T Millions, except where olherwise indicated.
Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers' have besen published by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA} but are not yel effective. Ind AS 115 establizhes principles for reporting useful information to users
of the financial staternents about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash fMlows
ansing from an entity's contract with customers. Ind AS 115 supersedes other revenue standards |.a. Ing
AS 11 and Ind AS 18 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Management has underaken an
assessment of the impact of this standard and does not believe that the impact would be material,

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

a1

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabiliies in the balance sheet based on current [non-current
classification. [

An assel is treated as current when it is:

*  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reperting period, or

= Gash or cash eguivalent unless resiricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at Izast

twelve months afler the reporting period
All other assets are clazzified as non-current

A liahility is current when:

= Itis expectod to be sellled in normal operating cycla

= [tis due to be settled within twelve months sfler the reporting period, or

* There is no uncanditional right to defer the setdement of the hizbility for at least twelve months after
the reporting penod

All ather liabiliies are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and lisbilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilitiez

The aperating cycle is the time between the acguisition of assefs for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve meonths g3 its operating cycle
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Foreign currencles

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included In the Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in whizh he entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Financial
Statements are presenied in Indian Fupecs (%), which is the Company's functional and presentation
CUTBNCY.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are trenalated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
pravailing at the dates of lhe lransactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
selllement of such transactions and fram the translation 2t year-aend exchanga rates of monetary assets
and liabliitiss dencminated in toreign currencies are recognised in the Statoment of Profit and Loss with an
exception of the following:- I
Under ind AS 21 exchange differences arizing on the translabonselllement of non-monetary fiem should
be treated 8s income or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, Ind AS 101 givas an exempticn fur
existing long term foreign currency nan-menetary tems wherein the Company can continug the policy
adopted for bealmenl of exchange differences arising on leng-term foreign currency maongtary itams
pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset for items recognized on or before March 31, 2015,

For any new long term foreign currency non-monetary item recognized from or after first Ind AS financial
reporting peried, deferral/amortization of exchange difference will not ba allewsd, rather the Company will
apply Ind AS 21 for recognition of gains and losses.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recaived to sell an assat or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly
transaction betwean market participanta at the measurement date. The fair value measuremenl 15 bascd
on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
» |nthe sbsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability |s measured using the assumptions thal market panid@ants wiould
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

& falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market particpanf‘s ability to
generate ecancmic benefits by using the asset in ils highest and best use or by selling it to ancther market
participant that would use the asset in ils highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation fechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair valuz, maxmizing the use of relevant observabla inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assete and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclozed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant 1o the fair value measurement as a wholg;

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markefs for identical assets or liabilities

Level Z- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the far velue
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valusbon technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unabservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring hasis, the
Company delerminegs whether ransfers have ocourred belwsen levels in the hierarchy by re-sssessing
categorisation (based on the lowest leval input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole)
atthe end of each reporting period,

The Company's Managemani determines the policies and procedures for both recurring land non -
recurnng fair value measurement, such as denvalive instruments and unquoted financial assets measured
at fair value
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3.5

At mach reporting date, the Managemenl analyses the movemants in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured ¢r re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting pelicies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation 1o contracts and olther rzlevant documants

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and lishility with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable,

Far thie purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilitics on
the basis of the nalure, characlenstics and nsks of the asset or liability and the lavel of thil,a fair value
hierarchy as explainad above.

Thiz note summarizes accounting palicy for fair value. Othear fair value related disclosures are given in the
rebevant noles,

Digclosurez for valuation methods, zignificant ssfimates and sssumptions of Financial instruments
{including those carriad at amortised cost [note 22) and Quantitative discloswies of far value measuremen!
hierarchy (note 23).

Revenue recognition

Revenue i= meazured at the fair valse of the consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be religbly measured: when |t is probable that future
economic banefits will fiow to the entity, and when specific crileria have been met for the Company's
activilies, as descnbed below.

Toll ravenua
The income from tall revenue from operetions of the facility is accounted on receipt basis,
Contract revenue (construction contructs)

Contract revenue associated with the construction of road is recognized as revenue by reference to the
stage of completion of the projects at|the balance sheet date. The stage of completion of project is
determined by the proportion that contract cost incurred for work performed up ta the balance sheet date
bears to the estimated total contract cosls.

Contract cost includes costs that relate direclly to the specific contract and allocated costs that are
atiributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cost that cannot be attributed to the contract activity such
as general administration costs are expensed as incurred and classified as other operating expenses.

Others
Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis.

Income on investment is recognized based on the terms of the investment. Income from muteal fund
scheme having fixed maturity plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
investments. Interest income is recognised on a time proporlion basis taking info account the amount
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assets measured at smortizsed cost interest
income is recorded using the Effeclive Interest Rate (EIR).

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toli Road Concession rights where it Designs, Builds, Finances, 0O erates and
Transfers (DBFOT) infrastructure used to provide public servise for a specified period of time, [hess
arrangements may Includs Infrastructure used in a public-le-private =arvice concession arranggment for its
entire usetul life.

Theee arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible assat
model is used fo the extent that the Company receives a right {a licensa} to charge users of the public
service. The financial assel medel is used when the Company has an unconditional contractusl right 1o
recelve cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the granter for the construction services.
When the uncanditional right to receive cash covers enly parl of the service, the two madels are combined
to sccount separately for each component. If the Company perfonms more than one service (ie,
construction or upgrede services and operation services) under a single contracl or arrengement,
consideration raceived or recsivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are eeparately identifiable.
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Intangible assets model

Intangitde assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accourted for as intangible assels
where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects are| completed.
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Company is obligated to pay the amount of
premium to Mational Highways Authority of India (NHAI). This premium obligation has been treated as
Intangible assel given it is paid towards gatting the right to earm ravenue by constructing and Diaaraung the
roads during the concession period,

Hence, the total premium payable to the Grantor as par the Service Concession Agreement is also
recognized as an ‘Intangible Assets’ and the comesponding obligation for committed premium is
recognized as premium vbligation.

The intangible assels is measured at tha fair value of consideration transferned io acquire asset, which is
the fair valus of consideration recoived or recevable for the construction services deliverad.

Amortization of concession intangihla assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amorlised over the concession period on the basis of projected Ll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consurmed The projected
total toll rewenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amorlization is revized in casa of
any matarial change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer nate 24 for description and
significant lerms of the concassion agreemeants.

Financlal assets model

The finencial asset madel applies when the cperator has an uncenditional right to raceive cash or another
financial asset from the granior in remuneration for concession services. In the case of lconcession
services, the operator has such an uncenditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of ameunt specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts recaived from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract,

Financial Assets resulting from application of Appendix A and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 are recorded in the
Balance Sheet under the heading “Cther Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost,

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recoverad from by charging
users of service  In such arrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the Intangible
assel model

Any asset carmed under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no fulurs
economic benefits are expected from lts future use or disposal or when the contractual nights o the
financial asset expire.

Maintenance obligations

Coniractual obligaticns to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure {principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrasiructire assst in
operaticnal condition except for any enhancement element) are recegnized and measurad [at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
next resurfacing would be required as per the concession arangement. The provision is discdunted to its
present velue at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assezements of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expacted o be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, The lax 1ates and tax laws used to compute the amaunt are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporling date in the countries whore the Company oparates and
generales texabie income. Current income tax relating to tems recognrized outside Lhe Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized vulside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in ather comprehensive income o
in equity) Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
cumprenensive income or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns wilh respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax ffabilities and assels are recognized for all taxable temporary diferences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxsble profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
Insses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred lax azsets 18 reviewed at sach reporting date and reduced 1o the extent
that it iz no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be evailable to allow all or part of the deferred
lex asset to be utiized. Unracognired deferred tax assets are re-assessed at sach reporting date and ars
recognized o the extent that it has becorne probabie that future taxable profits will allow e deferred tax
assel to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and lizbilities are measured at the tax rates that sre expactad to apply |in the vear
when the asset is realized or the liability is selted, based on tax rates (and tax laws) thall have been
enacted or substantively enacled at the reporting date. [
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss {eithar in other comprehensive income or in aquity). Daferrad tax itams
are recognized In correlaticn to the underlying transaction either in ether comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lisbilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax aszets against current tax lizbilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same laxable entity and
the same taxation authority,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly altribulable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial peried of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the assel. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they ocour,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

barrowing costs

Leases

Operating lease paymenis are recognized as an operating expanse in the income stalemeant c{n a straight
Iine basis over the lease term, |

Premium Deferment
Premium Deferral {i.e. premium payable less paid after adjusting premium deferment) is aggregated under

premium deferred obligation in the balance shest. The interest payable on the above 1s agoreqated under
deferred premium obligation. Interest on' premium deferral is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss,

2.10 Contingant liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible cbligation that arises from past events whose existence will be canfirmed
by the accurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future evenls beyond the contral of tha
Compeny or & present obligafion that is not recognised becsuse it is not probakle thal an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingenl liability aizo arises in extremely rare cascs
whare there is a liability fhat cannol be rscognised because it cannot be messured raliably The contingent
fiability is not recognised in the books of sccounts but its existence is disclosed n the Financial
Staterments. [

|


41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp


DS Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assets are tested for impaiment whenever events ar changes in circurnslances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
assel's Sarrying amount exceeds ils recoverable amount The recoverable smount iz the higher of an
assst's fair value lass costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grodped al the lowest levals for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
Independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assels that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impalrment at the end of
each reparting period

3.12 Provisions
Previsions are recognized whan the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) :IL a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying ecenomic benafits will be| raguired to
seflle the obligation end a reliabla eslimate can be made of lhe amount of tha abligation| When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the reimburscment is recogrized &8s &
separale assel, bul only when the reimbursement is vitually certain, The expensa relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit end Loss naet of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the lime velue of money is materal, provisions are discounted Using a current pre-tax rate
that reflacts, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provigion due {o the passage of ima is recognized as a finance cost.

3.13 Employee benefits
(i) 3hort term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expecied to be settled whally
within 12 manths after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reperting period and are measured at
the amounts expected lo be paid when the liabilites are setfied, The liabilties ars presented as current
employes banefit obligations in the bzlance sheet. |

(i} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege lsave to its employees,

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into sccount
the estimated portion of leave that will be encashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expecied to be en-cashed is provided for basad on the basic salary of the employes
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employses’ total
compensation, The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it 1= expecied io be
availed! en-cashed during the next 12 maonths. The remaining portion is classified as non-current, The
amounts of current and non-current lisbility are based on actuarial estimates,

{iii} Post - employment obligations

The Compeny oparates various post-employment schemes, including
{a) defined benefit plans such as grajuity
(b} defined contribution plans such ais provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet In respect of defined hanafit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reperting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by indepandent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method

The presant value of the defined benetit abligation Is determined by dizcounting the estimated future
cesh outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on governmeant bonds
that have terms approximating to the t2rms of the related obligation

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the definad
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expansa
in the statement of profit and loss
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Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, direclly in other compréhensive
income. They are included in retained eamings in the Statement of Changes in Eguity a.r'ld in the
balance sheel |
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit cbligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtaiiments are recognized immadiately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund centributions to publicly administerad provident funds as per local
regulationg. The Company hae no further payment obligations once lhe contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounled for as defined contribution plans and the contributions arc
recognized 32 employea benafit expenses when they are dus. Propaid contnibutions are recognized
as an assef to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is availahla

274 Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivelents in the balance shest comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-tenm
deposits with an original malurity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value

Faor the purpose of the Staterent of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of cutstanding bank overdrafls &s they are considered an integral part of
the Company's cash management.

3.15 Derivatives

Derlvatives are initially recognized al fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measurad to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. !

3.18 Trade Payables

Trade payables are cbligations te pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
ane year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities,

Trade payables are recognized iniially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost Lsing
the effective interest mathod.,

317 Financial instruments

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets |
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recérded at tar
value through Statement of Profit and Leoss, net of directly attributable transaction cost o the abguisition of
the financizl assel. Purcheses or sales of financial assets that roguire delivery of assets within 2 time frams
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
lrade date, i.e., the data that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asseat,

For purpases of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following cetegones;
= gt amortized cost

= gt fair value thiowgh profit or loss {FVTPL)
= atfair value through other comprehenzive income (FYTOCH


41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp


DS Toll Road Limited
MNotes to Financial Statements

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Finanuial assets are measured at the armortised cost if both the following conditions are met

a) The a=set is held within @ business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the maost relevant to the Company. All the Loans and cther receivables under financial
assats (except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fiked or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an aclive markel, |

After initlal measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured 8l amerlised cost using the
Effective Interest Rale (EIR) method, Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or
premiurm en acgquisilion and foes or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The FIR amorizaticn is
includad in finance incame in the Statement of Profil and Logs. The losses snsing (rom impaiment are
recognized in the Statement of Profil and Loss. This category generally applies to inansg and other
receivablas

Financial Assets at Falr Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

All investments in scopa of ind AS 108 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mulual
funds which are held for lrading, are ¢lassified as at FVTPL The Company makes such clection on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevacabla,

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FWTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There I8 na recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income (OC1) o the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition |
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or parl of the Company's similar financial
assets) is pimarnly derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from tha asset have expired, or '

The Company has transferred ils rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay toc a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement, and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially sll the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Cormpany has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into &

pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if ar *~ bt medmmb B ban cnbaie s db - ks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither fransferred 1 and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset. the nsfemed asset o the
extent of the Company's continuing involveme jnizes an associated
ligbility. The transferred asset and the associ iat reflects the rights

and okligations that the Company has relaine
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses an a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assels
carried at amortised cast and FVYOC|. The impairment methodelogy applied depends on whather there has
been a significant increase in credit risk,

The Company has lhree ypes of finanaal assels subject 1o Ind AS 109's expected credit loss model,

= Lopans receivables measured at amortised cost
|

s Retentions receivable, grant receivabla from NHAI
= Loans given to employees

The impainment methodology for esch Class of financial essets stated above is as follows:

Loans recsivables measured al amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortisad cost are genarally short
term in nature considersd to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is delemmined as 12 months
expected credil lusses.

Loens given to employees: For loans given to employees outstanging as on the reporting dates the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recegnition of each and every loan
or recewvable would result in undue cost and effort. As permittad by Ind AS 109, the credit pravision will be
determinsd based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporling date, until the loan s derecognized.
Using the impairment mathodology the Company has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be
recorded in the books of accounts.

Expacted cradit loss ('ECL') impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the PAL. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below;

Financial assets measured as at amertized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowancs, ie., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in 1ha balancs
sheet. The allowance reduces the net camying amount, Untll the asset meets write-off Criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at inital recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Staternent
of Prefit and Loss; loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

All financial liabilities are recognized inibially at fair value,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
ovaerdrafts and other payables,

Subseguent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depands on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings I

This is the categary most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subssquenily measured at amorised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings al Nealing rales. The inpact of restatement of effective inferest rate, year on year due to
resel of interest rate, is not malerial. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and | oss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amartization procase.

Retantion money payable

This is the category most relevant lo the Coumpany. Relention monava ara maasurad at Fair valua intially.
Subzeguently, they are measured at amortized o } metiod. Gains
and Insses ara recognized in Statermernt of Profit nized as well as
through the EIR amortizetion process.
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3.18

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the tenms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
medification is treated as he de-recognition of the original ligbility and the recognition of a maw liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments |
Financisl assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nat amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there i3 & currently enforceable legal night to offset the recognized amounts and there i= an infention o
seftle on a net basis, to realiza the assets and settle the liabilities simulteneously |

Derivative financial instrumants
Initial recognition and subsequent measuremeant

The Cumpany uses dervative financisl instruments —principal only swaps (o hedge its foreign CUrrency
risks. Such derivative financial instruments ara initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivativa contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets whan the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair valus = negative,

Any gains or losses arising frem changas in the fair value of derivatives are takan directly to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Segment infarmation |

The Company is engaged in *Road Infrastruciure Project” which in the context of Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segment” is considered as the only sagment. The Company's activities are restricted within India and
hence, no separate gecgraphical segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Critical accounting estimates and jucgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histarical expenence and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the enbity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concemning the future The resulting accounting
estimates will. by definiton, seldem equal the related actual resulls. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying ameunt of assets and liabilities are
disclosed below.

(i} Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaira

arrangements

The Company has determined that Aopendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Service concession arrangements’ s
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-io-private servica
concession arrangements. The Company has entered inlo concession arrangement with NHAl as per
which the Company would participate in the Design, Bulld, Finance. Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis
the ol roads infrastructure. After the end of the canceszsion arrangement, the Company has to transfer tha
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to Mational Highway Autharities of India (NHAT

Accordingly the Company has recognizad the intangible sssets recognized ss per the accounting polcy
mentioned in Note ne 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessioneira arran[T'ement'.

(i} Income taxes

The Cempany has recognized delerad lax assets relating lo carried forward lax lozses 1o the extent there
are sufficient laxable temperary differences relafing to the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losscs can be utilized However, (he utilization of tax losses alsn depends on Lhe ability af the
Company to satisfy corlain tests at the time the losses ane recouped, Management has forecasted futura
taxabie profitz and has therefore recognized deferred lax assels in relation 1o lax Iosses
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DS Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

(ili} Amortization of concession intargible assots

The Inlangible asset recognized are amorlised over the concession pericd on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed, The projected total
toll revanua ie based on the independent traffic valume projections, Armorization is revised in case of any
material change in the expactad pattern of economic benehits,

{iv} Impairment of concession intangible assets

The Company tests inlangible asset= and cash genersling units have sullered any impairmenl, in
accordance with the accounting policy steted in note 211, The recoverahle amount of (gach cash
genarating unit has been determined based on the greater of value-in-use and tair value less costs to scll
caleulations. These caloulations raquire the use of gsgumptions regarding traffic flows, discount rates,
growth retes and cther factors affecting operating activities of the cash generating units.

{v) Fair valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instrumants that are not traded n an active marke! is determinad ueing valuation
techniques, The Company uses its judgments to eslect a variety of methods and makes assumptions that
are malnly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date,

ivi] Provision for resurfacing obligation {major maintenance expenditura)

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per (he concession
arrangament 1o maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession perice. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected fulure payments: The calculations
te discount these amounts ta their present value ars based on the estimated timing of expendilure occurring
on the roads,

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.
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D& Toll Road Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 4 - Intangible assets (including intangible assets under development)

L Millions

Bl Toll Collection Intangible assets

; e rights under development
Year ended March 2016
Upening gross carrying amount 3,885.94 3.28
Additions - 277
Closing gross carrying amount 3.888.94 . 5.05
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 641.39 -
Opening accumulated amortisation and impairment 6541.39 -
Amortisation charge for the year 142.69
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 784.07
Net carrying amount 3,104.87 6.05
Year ended March 2017
Opening gross carrying amount 3,888.94 6.05
Additions - {6.05)
= |
Closing gross carrying amount 3,888.94 |
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 784.07 -
Opening accumulated amortisation and impairment 784.07 -
Amortisation charge for the year 144.84 -
Elasing accumulated amortisation and impairment 928 .91
Net carrying amount 2,960.03 -
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05 Toll Road Limited |
MNotes to the Financial Statements

) 7 Milligns
As al A% al As a
31st March, 2097 315t March, 2016 Apni1, 2015
Mate 5 - Financial Assets - Current |
MNote § {a) - Investments
(Invesiments al fair value throsgh Prefit ang Lese)
Investment in mulual funds - Non (rade
Cucted
Reliance Ligund Fund - Daily Dividend Plan® 12616 120.31 11383
farch 31, 2010 {(111BEI B0} @@ (1114.15)
March 31, 2016 (107682 B2 £ (111415 o . e
126.16 120,31 113.83
*Investimants restrctad by way ol lkn
Appegate market value of investmants 126.18 12031 11393
Nede & [b) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash oguivalents |
Balancas with Lrajiks
- Incurrent aceounts 1272 19.06 345
Depasits with matunly of less than three months 108.50 50,00
Cash on hand 1.58 204 _lus
122.81 T2.00 | 544
MWate § (c} - Other bank balances . |
Deposits with malurity of more than three moenths but less han - - 738D
twelve months
- - 73,80

Cash balance not avallable for use:

Ceraln Projact SPVs are required to maintain restricted cash which ean only be used as @ rosemnve for sarvicing the debt under financing
arrangemarts Theso reslrictad cash balances have not been included in the yearhalf vear end cash balancos for tha purpascg ol
pragaration of Cash Flow Statamend

Cash held on restricted fixed deposits

Fixed Deposiis 65.80 - ar.an

65.30 - 57.80

Nots 5 {d} - Loans

Unsecured, considered goog
Loans to othars 845 00 B45.00 2923.00

F46 00 645 00 202500
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0S Toll Road Limited
Netes to the Financial Statements

Asg at o e at As ai
J1st March, 2017 15l March, 2016 Agrik1, 201%

MNote 5 {e} - Other financial aseets - current
Inlerest accrued on fived deposie 0.80 (] 543
Retention money recaivabbs from NHAL 042 042 Az
Inlerast accrued on loans H1.228 0,33 95452
Clalm recaivable from MHAI B.77 o -

68.43 0.78 BE0.40
Mote 5 [f) - Other financial assets - Non - current
Securily Depasite 1.41 1.5 0.3
Ihepusilzs walh maturity of more than twabva months B1.00

e 1.5 51.5%
Mate & - Olther non-current assets
Prapaid Expences 288 1.86 1.54
Gratuily Advence 034 0,44 0.46
321 2.30 2.05

MNote ¥ - Other Current assets
Advanes {o vendors 343 318 391
Advance o employees Q.05 0.30 030
Prepaid Expenses/Claims receivable - 40.689 ! Q.34

Duties and taxes receivahle 0.8 0.1 19.62

388 4417 2418
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Motes to the Financial Statemants

;. ) T Milicns.
e al A5 at AE-at

Farticutars Now ol Shates ststWaich, 2017 3tst March, 2018 Apri 1, 2018

Maote 8 - Share Capital and Qlher equlity

Note 22 - Autherised Share Cagpital

At the paginning of the yoar 10,00,00,000 1,400.00 100000 1,.ea00.00

Add  Increasa during the year of T 10 each - - | -

Abthe ane of ihe year 1, DL 1,000.00 1. DO Ok
e S e s e i e —

MNede 8B - Issued, subscribed and pald-up squity |

share capilal

Arthe bagining of e yoar 52, 10.000 52,10 B3 10 [ 520

Ade : Increase durng e year ol T | each ' .

Altbw and of the year T . E210 3 210

e . . A— e S i s L e T

Note B - Turms and rights attached to equily shares

The: Gompany ks only one clase of shams rmfread 1o as Equity Bhaves having a ParValue of Rs, 10/ fin lho owent of llguidaton af the carmparry, llw haldoms of
anquity sharss will be enlited Imawiyn mmalring azsets of ta oy, alter distibition of all prederantial armounis The distribution wall b6 N progorlion Lo the
rirmber of aquaty shares hedd by the sharchaldors,

Note Bd - Reconsilistion of nos of Shares

Maos ul Shars et the begnning of tha yer 5§2,10,000 %2.10.000 &z, 10,000

Add : Mos of Shares (ssusd during the vear - - -

MO8 O Bl ot the end of Bw year ' SzA0,000 SZ.10.000 210,000

Note B¢ - Bhares hekd by the Sponsor
Company or their subsidiaricsisssociates

Ralisncn Infrastiuciure Limited |
(Immediate and Litrmate Holding Company) 52,10,000 52,110,000 | 52.10,000

Hotw 81 - Details of Shareholders holding mere than 5% shares |
Rellance Infrastructure Limited

Mas of Shares 52,10,000 2,90, D00 | 52.10.000
W of holding 100% 100%: plute s
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DS Toll Road Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

. T Millions
As at As at As at
31st March, 2017 315t March, 2016 April 1, 2015
Note 9a - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of aquity)
Al the beginning ol the year 46B.0 AGH.0
Increase f (decraase) during the year - =
Af the end of the year 468.0 = 455.0 - 4660

Terms and righls altached to Sub-ordinated dobls infused by Sponsaor alongwith lts Subsidiaries
Fepayrment based on available cash flow sller repayment of the enlire secured loans to Lenders and cardas 004 et

Mote 9b - Retained Earnings

Al lhw beginning of the year 3384 S0LE2
Met Frofit for tha year 31.55 (56.77) |

leims of other comprahansive income recognized
directly in retained esmings
- Remeasuremens of posl-employements o.M (0,01
obligations {net of tax)

At the end of the year ) p 6541 33 64 a0.62
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Noles to the Financial Statements

Mote 10 - Borrowings - Mon current — T Millinns
As al Ag at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 Agil 1, 2015

[
Secured |
Term boans
Fram banks
Rupes term Inan 2,202.93 27599
Fram financial inssitutions
lupes term loan 843 81 695.24 H2eHEA
Tedtal 2,846.74 507174 3,220.84

1) Ruper Torm Loan fraom Banks ¢

Ihe Bomowings aie sacured by the way of lerms statad in Commun Loan Agreement anterad bataeen NETR and Consorium of lenders -

(i} & trsl ranking pari passu mangage/charge over all the Ronewer's immaveable and mavable properlies, bath presant and future, excopt
the Project Assobs.

{2 first Fanking pari pasau charge on all the Bamower's bank accounis including, bul not limied 1o the Escraw Account its Sub-Accounts
whoeme all revenues, Disbursamants, receivables shall be deposited and in all funds from time to me deposhed tharein and in all Permitled
Invasiments o edher securiiies reprasanting all amounis credited to the Escrow Account.

() & first ranking pan passu charge on all movable langitée and intangible assets of the Borrower (other than these specified r paragraphs
() aborve and (iv) bedow) including but not limited to Bs goodwill, uncertaking and uncelled capital, both present and future. ax:.l-zpd the
Project Assets.| {

(iv] afirat rankeng pari passu charge over / assignment of the right, tile, interests, benefits, iaims and demands of the Borrower in, to.and
under any letter of credil, guaraniees (except the guaraniess issued in favour of NHA) incheding cantractor guaraniees and liguidated
damages and parformance band provided by any party ta th Project Documents,

|

(v the applicatile inferest rate for Rupee Term Loan vares from 10.00% to 12.00% p.a. !

MNote 11 - Trada Payables

Due 1o Micro and Small Enterprises
Trada Payabdes 43.58 k=R =] 41401

43.58 2880 41401

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Dvaclosure of paysble to vendors as defined under the "Miera, Small and Medium Enterprise Developmenl Act 2005" is bazed on the
information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said A=l as per the intimation received
Trom them on requests made by the company. There are no cverdue princigal amounisfinterest payable amourds far delayed payments 1o
such vendars at ihe Balance Shest date There are no deiays In peyment made to such suppliers during the year ar far any earlier years and
accordingly thare is no interest paid er outstanding inerest in this regard In respect of paymenis made during the year or brought Torward

from previous years. |
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DS Tell Road Limited
Motas to the Financial Stalements

Note 12 (a) - Other financial labilities - current

Az at As at o s al
3151 March, 2017 st March, 2016 B r‘_tn.fiu' 1,208

Current Maturities of long term debt 225.76 159.38 3320
Fiberest Accreed bul nel due 12,54 1324 -
Employee benefits payable 1.05 0.84 -
Retention Money payabla S 15.81 - -
Total 255,21 173.24 33.20

Note 12 (b} - Gther financial liakllitles - Men - current

Marn - Current I
Retention manay payadls - 12.50 237
Total R 4250 2ar

MNote 13 (a) - Provisions - Current

Current
Prevision for amployes banefils
- Leave ancashment 0.0l 0.03 ooz
Cithears
- Resyrfacing expensac = - 167 7R
0.03 0% 162 28
Note 13 (b} - Provigions - Non - Current
Provisicn for employae benefits
- Leave ercashmant 0.94 D84 .48
Others
Fesurfacing expenges 84,98 48,27 12 34
B5.892 48.91 12.82
Movement of Resurfacing provisions is as follows:
At the beginning of the vearhall year 4827 174,80 130,39
Charged { {credited) to Statament of Profit and Loss
Pravisicn madereversed dunng the vearfhalf waar BT 32 87 28.56
urmwinding of discount - 487 1462
Amaunt utilised during the vear/hall year . (15280
At the erd of the yearhalf year - B4.98 4827 174.80

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

A per the service concassion arangement with NHAL the Project SPY is cbligated to carmy out resurfacing of the roads under contession
The Praject SEVY oslimates the likely provision required tovards resurfacing and aceruss the costs on a straight line bagis over the penad at
the end of the which resurfacing weuld be required, in the Statement of Profit and Loss in acoomance with Ind AS 37 * Pravisions, Contingent
Liabiltias and Contingent Assots

HNote 14 - Other current liabilities

Advences from Customers 0.10 a.10 -
Dutles and tazas paygakie 27.38 1.62 1 84
Unsarned ravenun fram Bponsor . = 80000

27.4R ; 1.92 | 280185
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B T Millians
Year ended Year ended As at
318t March, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Mote 16 - Revenue from operations i
Operabing income
- Income fram toll callections EB7.37 AR TR Ega.94
Compensation towards Toll Suspension 26.44 P 2
Qther Operating incame: 0.71 0.54 G467
G14.22 5B7 42 G367
Matex 18 - Other income |
Dividend Incorme on current investmant 5.BB G40 | BER
Interest Incame |
= On financlal assets camied af amortised cost B7.73 46,52 3742
= On fixed deposits 595 T.7Th 7.04
- Qthers 1.75 - 0.00
Excess pravision for Gratuily wiitlen back 0.34 - ooz
Ingurance claim recened 7.26 0,54 023
Miscellaneous incomie 0.4 0,54 i B4
B9.25 5240 SH
Hote 17 - Tell Operation and Maintainence expenses (Refer Note 36)
Subcontracling supenges 10.38 2568 15.10
Maintainence of Roads 133.40 44 18 42,48
Elegtricily expenses 4.37 328 278
Handling Charges 1.11 0.87 0.50
Hite and olher direct expanses 3.88 10.88 1313
168.12 H4 B3 T4.00
Hote 18 - Employes benefits expenses
Salaries wages and banus 3.81 352 120
Cantribution to provident funds and other funds 015 013 0.08
Gratuity b 0.05 003 .
Leave encashment 0.30 0,18 0.3
Stall welfare expenses 0.12 0.05 .
4,42 3.91 157
Nota 18 - Finance Costs
Interest on loan 361.09 360 68 384,12
Urmanding of discount on provisions - 4.97 1685
CHher finance charges 0.a0 a1y .22
361.09 a7 399,88
Mote 20 - Other expenses
Rent 019 0.7 Q15
Rates & laxes 014 0.08 003
Ingurance 2.44 34 268
Lecal and Professional Chargas 5.34 24 .88 13.20
Expenditure 1oward Corporale Social responsibility 2.08 - -
Auditors Remunaration 0.42 0.8 0,35
Traveling and Conveyance 0.28 176 G.69
Other miscefianeaus mpenses 20,99 174 56.84
3185 32,36 ) T3E1
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DS Toll Road Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Mote 21 - Fair value measuremenis

Signficance of financial instrumants

Financial agsots

Al amortised Cost
Loans
Security Deposits
Fined deposits with malurnily of mare than 12 menths
Interast acorued on fixed deposits
Interest acerued on loens
Relention Monay receivable fram MHAI
Cash ard Cash egulvalent
Ciher bank balancas

Clasm receavishle from NHAI

At Fair value through profit & loss
Mutual fund Invastmeants

Total financial assets

Financial llabilities

At amortised Cost
Fioaling Rate Borrowings
Trade Payables
Retention maney peyable
Interest scerued but not dus
Emploves Benafits Payvalss

AL Fair value through profit & loss
Tetal financial liabilities

. o ¥ Milllans
As at As al A& At
st March, 2017 31sl March, 2016 April 1, 2015
B45.00 545,00 282300
1.5 1.61 Q.58
- - 5100
0.50 0o =43
51.28 033 464 .55
0.42 0.4 042
122.81 Fa.n 544
- - | TAA0
6.27 i
126.16 12031 112,83
983.90 B839.5 4 128 18
07250 3230.5% A262.84
43.58 28 80 414.01
15.81 12.50 2T
12.589 1HE 2
1.05 0.64
3145.52 328687 TR
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Motes to the Finaneial Statements |

T Millions
Ag at A al HAis at
3tst March, 2017 15l March, 2018 Apnl 1, 2015
MNote 22 - Fair value Hierarchy
{a) Fair value hiararchy - Recurring fair value moasurements
Finangial assets
At Fair valua through profil & loss
Mutal furd nvestments 128,18 120,31 113.93
Total financlal assets 12646 120 31 i 119,53
|
Financial liahilities . g .
Totel financial liabilities & z =
{b) Fair value hiorarchy - Agsets and liabllitles which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed:
Financial agssets o 2
Total financial assols . . 3
Fimancial liabilities
Level 3
Fiogting Rate Barrawings 3072.50 3230.59 AXGD B4
Ratantion money payable 15.81 12 50 227
Total financial liabilities 308837 3243.08 326511

Recognised fair value measurements
Leved 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financlal instruments meagured using quoted prices. This inciuges mutual furds that have gupbed price. The
mitual funds are valued using the closing MAY,

Leval Z: The fair value of financial instrumenis that are not fraded in an active market {for example. cver-the-courter derivatives) is determined
uzing valuation techniquas which maximise the use of observable market daia and rely as little as possibla on entity-specific eslifnates. If al
significant inpus required to fair value an instrumant are observable, the mstrument is included in level 2.

Level 5 If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable merket data, the instrement is included in level 3. This is the case for
borrowangs, debentures. Rerertion money payvable ard hodgirg dervative incuded in level 3

(e} Fair value of financial assots and liabilities measured at

Financial agaets

Carrying value ol financial assets at amortised cost - . P

Total Financlal assets at amorised cosl a ' : z

Fair value of financlal assets carried at amortised cost i 2

Total Fair value of linancial assets at amortised cast o =
Financial liabilitieg |

Carrying value ol financial lisbilities at amortised cost

Flaaling rate bormowigns 3,072.50 3,230.55 A, 707 B4

Retention monay 15.81 12.60 | 2.27
3,088.31 3,243.08 i H.65 11

Fair value of linancial liabilities carrled at amortised cos)

Floading rate Borowigns 3,072.50 3,230,549 3,262 .84

Debenturas - H -

Retantion money : 15.81 1250 227
3,088.21 3.243.08 326511

The carrying value amounts of fixed doposits, interes! acorued on depoists, retention money recewvable, insurance caim raceivable, cash and
cash equivalents.frads payables, interest accrued, employee banefils payable and craditors tor capital expendilure appraximate thenr e il
due Ly hesr shor; term natune.

For financial assats and liahilities thal are measured at fair value, the carmying amaunts are equal to tha fair vaiues.,
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DS Toll Road Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements |

Note 24 - Financial risk management
The Project SPY aclivilies exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
Thiz nate explains the source of risk which the entity is axposed to and haw the antity is manage the risk.

Risk Expasl;lr;emarlslng Meas uremant Management
Credit sk Cash and cash Aging anatysis Credil Diversification of
equivalznts, trade ratings bank deposits, credit
recevables, inancial limits and letters of
assels measured at credit
amortised cost
Markiat risk — foreign exchange Recogrized financial Cash flow forecasting Activaly Managad
assels and liabilities  Sansitivity analysis
not genominated In
Indian rupee (INR)
Market risk — interest rate Long-term Sensitivity analysis Actvely Managad
borrowings at
variable
Rates |
Ligquidity rizk Borrowings and othar Rolling cash flow Availability of
liabilities forecasts cormrmilted credit
lines and borrowing
facilities

The Project SFY's risk management Is carried out by a project

Commadity risk: |

The Project 8PV requires for implementation (construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as
cement, bitumen, steel and other construstion materials. Far which, the Project 5PV entered inle fixed price
contract with the EPC contractor and O&M Confractor 50 as lo manage our exposure io prica increases n raw
materials. Hence, the sensitivity analysis is not required

Market risk — interest rate risk

The Bank loans follows fleating rates with resets defined under agreements. While intarest rate fluctuations carry a
risk on financials, the project SPV earn toll income which is linked to WP thus providing a natural hedge I the
interast rate nsk.

a) Interest rate risk exposure [

_ T Millians
Az at Az at As at
P
Srcuiars 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
I
Variable Rate Borrowings 3.072.50 3,230.59 3,252.31‘
Total 3,072.50 i 3,230.59 3,262.84

b} Sensitivity analysis

Frofit or loss is sensilive to higherfiower interest income from borrowings 22 a result of changos i interest rates.

_A:, at As at As at

I -
RS NP S 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2015

Interast rates (increase) by 1 basis points (24 27} {25.52) (25.78)
Inlerest rates decreage by 1 basis points 24 27 25.52 2578
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DS Toll Road Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Mote 25 - Capital risk managemaent
The Project SPV objectives whan managing capital are to

Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concarn, so that they can continus to provide returns for sharsholders
and benefits for other stakehclders, and

Maintain an optimal capital structure t¢ reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the projact 5PV capital management, capital includes issuad equity capital. sharc picm:um sub-debis
and all other equity reservas atiributable to the equity haldars of the parent The primary objective of th1;- project SPY capital
meanagemeant i2 to maximize the shareholdar value |

The Project SPY manages its cepitel structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
reguirements of the financial covenants. Te maintain or sdjust the capital structure, the Projest SPY may adjust tha dividand
payment to shareholders, return capital 1o shareholders or issue inlerest free sub-ordinata dabt. The Project 5P monitors
capltal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Project SPV policy is to keep
aptimum gearning ratio. The Project 3PV includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and horrowings, frade payables, less
.cash and cash equivalents.

In arder to achieve this overall abjective, the proect SPY capital management, amengst other things, aims lo ensure that i
mests financial covenants attached to the interesl-bearing loans and bonmowings that detina capital structure reguirements
Na changee were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for year ended March 31, 2017 and
March 31, 2016,

Consistent with cthers in the industry, the group monitors capital en the basis of the following gearing ratio;

Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash eguivalents)
divided by
Total 'equity’ {35 shown in tha balanca shaeat)

The project SPY strategy is to maintain a debt tc equity ratio within 1.86 to 4.00. The gearing ratios at March 31, 2017 and
March 31, 2016 were as follows:

1 Millions
As at As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 April 1, 2016
Mel debt (a) . A.072.50 3.230.58 3,228.64
Equity () 5B5.51 553.94 61072
Met debt to equity ratio (a) / (b) 525 5.83 5.29
e ¥ Millions
Particulars As at A at _.hs at
31st March, 2017 J1st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
Net debt (a) 3.072.50 3,230.58 3,220 64
Equity (b} 58551 553.94 61077
Mebt debt plus Equily (S = a+b) 3.658.01 3,784,523 3,840.36
Gearing ratio (a) / ¢ 0.24 085 0.84
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DS Toll Road Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Mote No.26 - Earning per share

Particulars

Year endad
st March, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

Profif f Lozs atfributable to equity sharshaldars (T, Millians) (&)

Waighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted
aarnings par shara (1) (B}

Earnings / (Loss) par share (Basic and diluted) {I) {A/B)

Mominal value of equity shares (€

1.55

52,710,000

6.06

10.00

(56,77

92.10.000

(10.90)

10.00
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DS Toll Read Limited
Naotes to the Financial Statements

Mote 27 - Related Party Transaclions

As per accounting slandard ind AS 23 as prescribed under the Companies (Accounting Stendard) Rules, 2015, (he relaied parties and

transactions are disclosad below

Sponsor Company
Reharce Infrastructure Limited

Key Management Parsonnal
Kauzhik Pal - Director (w.e.f. October 1, 2015)

Madan Biyani - Diracter {w.e.f. March 31, 2015)

Amitabh Jha - Director (wa f March 31, 2015)
Frachi Guata - Cempany Sacretary (we f March 31, 20148)

Person having singificant influence on the Sponesor Company

Shri Amil O Ambani

| T Millions
Particulars st March 2017 3t March 2016 Aprll 1, 2015
Transactions during the year :
Toll oparation and maintainence expensas (including project
execution support services)
H Infra B.BB 545
Reimbursement of expenditure paid by
F Infra 0.07 0.07
Balances at the yoar end:
Other current liabilities
R Infra 11.47 ] 3.278.54
Sub-debts {in nature of aquity) {
R Infra 468.00 468.00 468 .00
Equity share capital (excluding premium)
R Infra 5210 52.10 5210
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D38 Toll Road Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Mote 28 Gratuity and othar post-employmant benefit plans

a) Dafined contribution plan

The Tollowing amaount recognized as an expense in Statement of prefit and kogs on account of providant fund and other

funds. Thera are no cther aoigations olher than the conlribedion payabls to the respective suthorfies, | & Millions.
As at s at | asat
st March, 2017 MstMarch, 2016 April 1, 2015
Zantribution t& provident fund and other fundsa 015 0.08 0.05
Total 0.16 0.n8 0.08

B Delmed beoeld plan

The company Group has a defined bened plan {ralsty] fon ks emphayees. The gratity plen i3 govemed By the Payment of Gratuity Ast,
1872 Uindeny Hue Aed, ernployoen whe has compieted five years of sandee i entitled to specific banetil. | he level of benefils provaded depends
on tha rernbers length of sensce and salary at retrement age Fvery employes wha has completed five years or mesne of service gets a
grabuily on depature at 18 days selary (ast drawn salary) for each completed year of sarvics as per the provision of the Payment of Sratuity

Aed, 1972 with 1otal ceiling on gratuity of He.1,000,0008 Tru said grstuity plan & funded,

The tables below summarizes the ameunts recagnised in the baisnce eheat and lhe movements (0 the nat defined benefit sbligation ever the

year

e % Milliens

Ag At AB at As at
3181 March, 2017 st March, 2016 | April 1, 2015
Roconciliation of Met Liabiity / Asset:
Cpening dafinad banefit llability | (assels) Q.59 040 a2n
Ket employee benefit expense recognised in the employes cost
Currant service cosl 0.08 n.o8 0.05
Past service cost - ” | -
Interest cost on benefi obligalion D.0& 0.03 o.oz
(Gain] f losses on setlement - i 3
MNet benefit expense Dz 012 0.07
Amount recorded In Other Comprehensive incoma {OCI)
Maasuramant during the year due 1o
Return on plan assets, excluding amourds included nintorosl axpensasiin & -
Actuarial loss | (gaind ansing from change in financial assumptions .04 0.0 0.0
Acidarial Ioss { (gain) ansing on account of experience changos .05 .05 016
Expenance (gainsiiossas - (204 [0.08)
Amount recognized in GCI 014 a.m 013
Benefit Paid
Closing net defined banefit liability | jasset) - & 0BG 053 040
As at hs at As at
318t March, 2017 318t March, 2016 | April 1, 2015

Opening fair value of plan assels 1.17 1.08 1.00
Hut employee benefit expense récognised in the amployes cost I
Interesl cost on benefit obligation o.0g% o.08 D08
[Zaln) { losses on settemant A z "
Nt benafit cxpense ong .08 Dow
Amount recorded in Other Comprahensive Income (OCH)
Measurament during the year due o :
Retum an plan assels, exdding amounts incleded [ interest sxpensalin o nn 0.00 0,01
Actuarial loss f (gain} ariging from change in financal assumplions
Actuanal lose f (gaing arising on accound of ouperience changes
Exporence (galns)llossses "
Asgel caling nol recognesd s an sesed {0.08) r .
Amount recognized In OC| {0.05) u.oo .01
Employsr confribubons'premiums paid -
Bensfits Fald - " -
Closing falr value of plan assets - B 1.21 117 1.08
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D& Toll Road Limited
Maotes to the Financial Statements

Maote 28 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

£ Millions
As at #Aa at As at
J1st March, 2017 3=t March, 2018 April 1, 2015
Present value of funded obligations .06 0,53 0.40
Fair walug al plan agsets 1.21 117 1.08
Amaunt net recaanlsed a3 an asaet (azset cailing) - 030 022
ELN {0443 ______[0.48)
Met Hability! [asset) s bifurcated as follows @
Curran - - .
Mar-surrent {0.34) (0,443 [0 48y
Talal {i.34] oagy | (046
A oal As at A al
J1%t March, 2017 F1st March, 2016 April 1, 2015
Dizraunt rals T.05% 7.80%, T AR,
Cxpacted rate of refurm an plan assets (poa.)
Salary escalation rate (p.ah £l 7508 £l
Indian Assured Irefiizn Assured Indean Assured
Mortaliy pre-sstiremant Lives Mortalily Lives Marality Lives Morality
(2006-03] (2006-00} [2005-08)
A quantitetive analysis for significarm sssumption 8 a2 =hown balow,
A at As at Asat
¥st March, 2017 31st March, 2014 April 1, 2015
Assumptions -Discount rate
Hensilivily Level 50 bp 50 bp 50 bp
Impact an defined benafl obligation -in % increass -6.40% -5 72% -6.94%
Impact on definad banefi obligaton -in % decreass B.99% 622% B8
Assumptions -Future salary increases
Sensiivity Leval 90 bp 50 bp 50 bp
Impact on defined penefil obligaton -in % increase 6.93% 6.21% E.ATY
Impact on defined Benefi obligaton -in % decresse 6.4 1% -5 TE% -5,98%
Theia Labin teelowr shows the expecind cash flow profile of the benefis to be paid to the current
membership of the plan based on past sarvice of the employees 85 &1 the valuation dale
As al As Bt As at
J1st March, 2017 Hst March, 2016 April 1, 20115
Within the next 12 months [next annual repording period} 0.03 o.02 0.0z
Between 2 and 5 years 015 012 0.09
Between & &nd 9 years [ 0. 6& D.40
For and Beyond 10 years 2.52 1.9¢ 1.38
Total expacted payments .88 2,80 1.89
The average durgtion of the defined benefit plan okligation at the end of
the: repoding period 1337 years 1193 yrars 13 40 yisars,

Flan Assels Composilion

As at A5 at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 | April 1, 2045

Non Quoted
Insurer Managed Funds FA 121 147 1048

1.21 1.7 1.08
A resmanalation of fhe assel ceilng during the inter-valuation period 13
Qen babow:
Cpening value o assel cesding Q.20 0.2z .2l
Add : Interest on opening balance on assel ceding ao:s .02 0.0
Femeasuramenl dua 1o
Changos in surplus/defizier .08 04y [0 Gty
chasing value of asset cailing .27 0.29 0.2
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& Toll Road Limited
Nates to the Finanzial Statements

Motz 28 First Time Adoption of Ind AS

The Cempany has prepared these Financial Statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for the pericds ending March 31, 2017 togettser with the comparative
period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016 respectively 23 deacribed in the summary of signficant accounting policies. In prepenng those naecal
statorments, the Company has considered April 01, 2015 as the cate of transiion and has adjusted the amounts reporied previously in the financial statemonts
prepared in accordance wilh e accourdng standands notified under Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) &nd other relevant provisions
of the Act (Previeus GAAP or Indien GAARP)

Thie adoption al Ind A% has been carmied oul in accordancs with Ind A% 101, First-time Adogtion of Indian Accounting Standards

In preparing thesa Ind AS Financal Statemants, the Company has avashed cerfaan exemptions and excepbons in accordance: with Ind AS 107, a8 explainad below.
Thiz rezsullienyg differenoe Debweesn (he canying valoes of the aseals and kabililies in the Financil Skslements as ol e nsion date under ind A5 and Frevious
3AAF nave bean recogneed direcily in equity [retained earnings or anather appropriate category of squity), This note explains the adjustments made by e
Company in restating its Previcus GAAP Financial Statements, Including the Ralance Sheaet as at april 01, 2015,

A Exemiplions from retrospective application

Imed A8 10T sl diesk-arme aodogdens cesilan edemmpbons Tam redoespeclive apphcation of ceran equiinents unco od 85 | he Gompany has alactod o
apply U loliowing optional exemptions trom retrospective apglication of Ind AS:

{a) Amortization of intangible assets arising from service concession arrangements

The Compeny s osed examplion undsr Ind A5 107 arkd has conbinee to adopl the accounting policy of Previous GAAP for amorizalion tor intangible aesets
arising from service conoossion arrangemaents mlsbng 1o conoessicon ol roads inkangible asscls recognized inthe Financal Stalamenls

B. Exceptions from retrospective application.

The Company has aoplied the following eeceptions from full refrospective applization of Ind AS B3 mandaiterdly required under jnd AS 101:

[a) Estimales

On assassmant of the estimates made under the Pravious GAAF financial statements, the Company has conclucad thal 1r|arEr is no nacessity to rovise the
estimates under Ind AS, a8 there |s no colective evidence thatl those estimates were in errer. Hewever, estimates, that wape required under (nd AS but not
required under Previous GAAP, are made by the Compary for the relevant reporting dates, reflecting conditions existing as at that date,

(b} Classification and measurement of financial assots

The dlaseification of financial assats io ba measured al amerdised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income is made on ihe basis of the facts and
circurnstances that existed on the dale of transition to Ind &S,

C. Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations

Ind AS 101 requires an entity 1o reconcile equity, cash fiows for the prior pesiods. The following lable represents the reconciliations from previeus Indan GAAH 1o
Ind AS:

| Effect of ind AS adoplion an the Balance Sheel as at March 21, 2018 and April 1, 2015

Il Effect of ind A5 adopltion on the Statemant of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018
I, Reconciliataon of total equity as al March 31, 2016 and Apri 1, 2015

V. Reconciliation of total comprehansgive income for the year endad March 31, 2018

. Material adjustments 1o the s1atement of cash fiows for the year ended March 31, 2018
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D5 Toll Road Limited
Woias to the Financial Stalements

I Effect of ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheot =3 —ow oxa T Millions =
As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
{End of last period presented under Previous GASP] (Date of trans|ton)
. Il A5 lndian Ind AS
Mate | incian GAAP® i stments Wi GAAPY  adjustmants L
ASSETS
MNon-current asseis
{a] Intangibln assels i 344185 {337 0E) 3,104 AT 3.560|08 (351 .51) 4,247 55
(k] Intangible assaqs under daveinamenl B.05 (0.00) G.05 3|28 = 328
() Financial Asgels
{{) Dihior Financial Assols m 4241 {40 R} 189 51568 5158
(@] Ofhar non - curnent assats ¥ .30 2.3 1|37 08T 205

Curranl assels
() Finanrcial Asant

i) Imeesirmans 1203 [0.00]) 12041 11391 0.02 113.93

1) Cash and cash equivalents 7200 (414} 72.00 130024 (124,809 L)
ly Benk balances other tan (i) ahove - - - - TRAN TRAD
v} Lasarie B45.00 a46.00 2,023.00 - 2.923.00
b Criher financinl assed i 2 (73 48 076 084 A% f A5 fA6N 40
(b) Current Tax Assels [Met) . - 1479 1EB.7d L ERETH (24,40 17,76
(1) Dbt caierren] csseds 133 43 R4 44 17 R40 1875 2418
Total Assols 2 435096 [235.40] 401678 7IT3AB _ (3503%) 7 AZZNT_
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(@) Equaty share capaal 5210 . 210 £2.10 £2.10
(b Oither equity 42218 T80 501,84 512,83 4579 550.62
LIABILITIES
Han-curmnt llabllitles
(&) Financial Labikies
1) Horicwings Jiiip 3,547 08 (4TE A3 3.071.23 3,708[33 (475655 3.229.64
{ii) Olhes Tnansal Tabilies 14 12.50 - 12.50 2|2y - 22!
(b Provisions il .84 48 3T 48.01 nlag 1234 1242
ey Dforred tax lablites (Mot iy 111.43 1288 124 08 160]07 (82,83 56,08
Curnend liakilities
ia) Financial Liabiites
) Trade payaties 29.94 (0.04) 25,90 41083 an 414.01
il Ohee finencial liabiites 175,13 (189 173.24 33.20 33,20
() Oither currant liakdilies - 102 182 2938132 [H6.37) 2.8901.95
(=} Prowisions 0.04 - 03 ooz 182.28 16228
Total Equity and Liabilities 350,96 33520 4,016.76 771818 [35023) _ 7.

T presentadion requiremints undor Previcus GAAP diffars from and henca the Proveous GAAP Informelion has been regrouped for ease of reconcilintion with Ind A5 Tho
ragrauged Previous GAAP information |a desived besed on the sudited financial staternents af the Company.
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05 Toll Road Limiad
Medes Lo thie Financial Staternents

% Millicns

IIl. Effect of Ind AS adaptic the State nt af Profii and Lo
5 g bl For the ynar anded March 31, 2016

(Latest period presented under previcus GAAP]

Famsculars MNle Indian GAAP Ined A% adjustments nzd AS

Hevenue from operatons il LEf 42 [l ] LUT.42

Othar Incomea B1.77 184 B AD
Taodtal Incoma G45 1S 064 64%.83

1

Expenses |

Tall Operation and Maintadinence axpenses i) 210,54 L129.61) G450

Frphoypr= bemalils sapansa 85 (003 im

Finance costs i, fiv) G067 6, EhE 374

Armorlizalion espengs 11] 1R7 B3 {16R 15} 14268

Other expensas i) 3726 (.51} 32.36
Tolal expanses : TTEAE {13B.58) G30.58
Frofitf (loss] batora tax {128.28) 140.60 1124
Tax expense

Liatemad tas chargsd|sradid) if R 1015 & £H.01
Profit{Loss} for the year [90.88) =381 [56.77)

Other Comprehenshva Incoma

{I} Itema that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss
Rarmaasuremends of not definnd - (0,04} 201}
benafi plans : Gaina /| (Loesg)

(i) Income Lax relaling Lo ilems Lhal will ot
he reciassified wo profit or loes

Rermaasuremants of nal defmad benedil plans - {0.00 103.00)
Qther Comprehensive IncomedLoss) tor the year : 0.01} ot
Total Comprehensive Income f(Loss) for the year —{90.65) 3380 | [66.T&)

“The presentelion requirements under Previous GAAP differs from and hence the Previous GAAP information has been regrauped for cese of reconclialion
with Ind A5, The regrouped Previous GAAP informalion is dedved based an the sudiled financisl statements of the Cormpany
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DS Toll Road Limited h
Notos fo the Financial Statements i

. Reconcillation of Total Eguity T Millians

Az al - .I;n.a-l:
Filcisor - March 31, 2016 Apedl 01, 2015

Total equity [shareholders funds &8 per Indian GAAP) 422,15 B2 B3
A justmmnie.
Ratrmspactive applicalon of service concossionaire amangamonts #) (a7 (11372
Frpacl of Financial assals recognised under concossiomairn . - .
arrangamsnt il 72.78 T2.TE
Capna Heserse racognised as tinancial assat ] (31000 (310.00]
Rosurfacing provision recagnised as per ind A5 28 finclusing
1T4
urranding of digcount on resurecing provision) ™ (33.12) (1]
Zuh-vrdirabad did in nefu of oouily i 488 00 38,00
BLarTovadngs (L] 938 568
Cithara (0 ady 074
[air value af mutsal fund Invesimen:s ol .01 1002y
Jax affacts on sdjustrests (deferres ax impact Fiy L1254 L0
Total adjustments 79.70 45.73
I.ctal equity {shareholders funds as per ind A5} 501,81 FITHT]
. Heconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income
4 Miilizns
. Fur the your ended
Particula
il sl March 21, 206
Met prodit ar (Inss) a5 par Pravious SAAR [Indlan GAAR) 190.60)
Adjustments:
Resurfacing provision recagrised a3 per Ind A5 36 (including
urwinding of discount an resufacing provision) ) 141 4R
Barrvaings [iiE) .68
(Cithars (167}
Fair Value of Muiusl Fund Invasimsenis: (S n.oa
Tax allacts on sdjusiments [deferred lax impact) 1iib (108,58}
Tolal of Adjustment e
et prodiltloss) as par ind A5 (56,77}
V. Materal adjustments to the Staterment of Cash Flows 4 Millions
Year ended March 39, 2015
Particulars Indian GAAP Ind A8 Ind A5
Edjuslmans
Mat cash flows from oparabing aclivities 33883 (3,183 20) {2,844.27)
Net cash Mawe from investing aclivilies 12662 3,169.56 3,200.58
Not cash flaws from financing activites 1407 84) 13,24 |3BE.7T4)
Net intreassiidecreass) in cash and cash equivaloris BR57 [{ali)] [
Cash and cash squivalants 8l bagimning of yaer .43 .00 543

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year T2.00 10 0a) v2.00
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08 Toll Read Limited
Mates to the Financial Statemants

Motes 10 First ime adoption of Ind AS
Hote {i) - Application of service concessionaire arrangement as per Appendlx A of Ind A5 11

Appendie A of Ind A5 11 'Sorvice Conenssionsre Arangement’ & applicabia 1o the Company which provides guidance on accounting by the operatofs of public-lo-private serdce
CONCEESaN amengemants undar which private sector entilies participate in the deselopment, financing, operation and maintenanca of Infrastnuscture fe proviskn of pusic sevices., The
Company (5 engagad i in Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transter (EFOT) oasis the toll roads including operation and maintanance thereol during the cancossion peraod Ao
the expiry of the concession peried the Company |s requinad to handever i ofrastuciuee De fhe oll oads to the granton e Malional Highway Aathcnbes of india (MHALL

A% par tha salent fealure of the concesslon armengement, the operator has & bwofold aclivity based on which reveome is recagnized in fhe inancial stataments which is i ne with the
reuirement of Agpandix A af Ind A5 11,

B cpastrucion acilty In mspars of ils ehiigation to desge), b sed finance an aasol hat @ makes availetia the gramlor ; revenus 6 recognzed on a stage af eomplation basia in
aceardanse with ind A5 11 during the consinuction phasa of the iof rads
- an oparating and maimoenance actvity in respact of the assets under the concession during the sparationa | ravendue |5 racognized in accordanca wilh Ind AR 18

On accowt of sbove there has bean decraase in infangicle asses ansing on ascount of ol collection dghis of T 310 milllonz as at March 31,2018 and T 310 mmillions e ol Apil 1,
PO whren B Caompy less an uncondilional rght 10 recess payments from the grantor ve, MHAI which has been deducted trom the <ost of inlangitle asseta end recagnized &3
tinanclal assets which eafer vnder the indie AR wos aonszhened as monale s conb@bulion and was recognized s 'Cagabal Resosoee' o accandance wih A5 12 BRecoumtng far
Gawvemment grants’,

Furiner, impact of tinanclal assets mooqnisad wndonr coneessioesine arcanggerme el ol discoosdiog] cesalling in imaease in Tabal Fouily T 7278 mdlions ge al March 31, 2096 and £
a0 millions a5 at Aprl 1, 2015,

Koreover Mere kas heen decroasa in intengibie asscls and deoraase o ods cquEy, ansing os aeeomt of aeplicedion of songce concession amangerenl, of TIEA T2 millkings e al
Warch 31, 2016 and T113,72 milions as & April 1, 2015,

Meta (If} - Recagnition of deferred tax asselsiliabilily ag per lnd AS 12

Ind AR 12 reguines an enlily 1o recoguze detarmad fax usng balance shesd agproach, which is basad on the tarmporary ditferen ces bebwesan the lax ase of an asse; or Rbilty and i3
camying amount in the financial statements. Deformad fax s peovided in Tub Tr o lemporary dilferences aising belween the fax bases of assobs and Baldiles and Dhair canying amount
in the fmanciat statemanis. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets for all deductible temporeny differences including unused tax losses carried farward 1o the extant that It Is
predabibe hal laxabds profils woukl be available aganal which the deducibe tamporany dfferanceas can ba ublized. |

Lnder Indian GAAF deferred lax was recognized based on income Bpproach 8nd deferred (e 8988L5 in case of unusad lax losses carried fonward are recognized i there Is virtual
cartainty thal sufficient future laxable income wil be available to realize tha sama. Hence on account of above deformed 1ax ssests wore nol recogniced undar 1he indian GAAF

Cin arocunt of above thers has been norease in deferred lax asset fnet) resulling in decrease in Total Equity by T 12,66 milkons 85 8t March 31, 2018 and increase in Total Equity by 3
83,93 millions as at April 1, 2015 and decroase in loss of T106,58 milians during the yaar andad Manch 31, 2016 mainly on accouwnt of Ind A5 adjustments perlaining 1o rotrospociive
application of sondoe concession armangemon and doeforned lax asacl recopnized lor unusad (ax losses carmed fonsand as per ind AR 12

MNuda [iii] - Borrowings

ind A5 10 requires ransaction costs incurmed twwards angination of bomowings to be deducted from the carmdng amount of borrowings on initial recognition. Tha same i recognized
o5 inberest 85 pac of the effective interest mabe method ouer the period of 1he borrowing

Under Indian SAAR, thase wore captaksed to inlangite aseets a6 per AS ° 6 'Borrowing cost' 83 and when Incuired.

O account of abova thara has been morease in barrovwings by 9,35 millions as at March 31, 2016 and T8 &0 millions as at March 31, 2015 wilh a cormasponding adjustmant i
imfangible asseis. This rosulled i dechease in oss b 7066 milians Tar the year anded March 31, 2018 [

Maote {iv] - Resurfacing obligation recognized as per Ind AS 37

B P BEMICE CONCESSION A méumant, the Company (8 obigated o cary oul resurfacing of the roads inder the concassion peried every five yaarg. Tha Company eslimates (ho likoly
provision required towsrds resurtacing and accrues the costs on an atralght kne basis over the period at the end of which resurfacing wousd be requined in tha Staternent of Profit and
Logs.

Lnder Indiin GAAP thia same suligation was recognized o e pear in which resurfacing was required as per the concesslon amangemient,
Thoa net effect of the Bbove I8 decreasa i folal eguily by £33.12 milions a8 & March 31, 3018 and $174.6 mllions as at April 1, 2015 with ding incresse in resurfacing
provigions (nat of unwdnding discount). This resulbed In decrease In (oss by ¥141 48 milionz for the yesr ended March 31, 2016, |

Mole (v} - Clagsilication of subordinate debt Instruments [in nalure of squily)

bnd AS A2 nmuiees classificalion of fimancial instremends issued indo financizl liabliies or aquity. Subordingla debt Instruments isswad do not meet the definilion of & inancial liatdty, a5
the larms do ned cast & contractual abligation on the the Company to make any payment of principal and accrued intaraed theeeon in cash o olbon fancial assel, Faiber sionos tho
INErUMmeIts are non-converible, the Comgany is mal requised o sedile e condracts by ssoancn ol Saeie ose oguity Instremons.

Under indian GALP, theso instrumens wera regarted a5 bomowngs.

COin aceount of ahoue thers has been increase in total equity by T 468 milliods a3 al March 31, 2015 and T 458 millions as at Apni 1, 2015 wilh & cormesganding Gecrease in Dorrowings.

Mote (i) - Fair value of mulual fund Investmants

Ind AR 108 regquecs noubia) Tund msestmenis b b owsesonsd al Bic sk The resubting fair value changos In teze inveziments have been recognzed in the relaied 2ArMINgs 2% an
fnz ransition dete and subsequently In ine statement of profit & Es ascodn |
|

Under the Indian GAAP, investments n mutual fuwds were clagsified a3 curren investment and wens Carmed a1 iower of cost and 1ai walue

I hi net afect of the above 15 dacraase n tolal equity by $0.02 milkons &5 at karch 51, 2016 and increaes in lolal eguity by 7001 milllons a3 at ,ﬂ.,prﬂh. 2018 with comrasponding

norease in mvesimants. On account of sbove there has been Increase in value of imvestments by T 0.03 milken with a comesgandng adjuslment fo rial.aurrﬁtl BaNINGE for fecogbon o
tan ¥alue change o muiusl fund mvestmant ag on tha transibon dabe
I
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Mote 30; Assets pledged as security

Ihe carrying amounts of azsselz pledged as securily for current and non-caarent borrawings are:

s o P o S . % Milions
Mzrch 31, 2017 | March 31, 2015 Agni i, 2015 |
Curront 1
Financial arsnts
First charge 1
Investments 128,18 |~ 12031 | ~ 113493
Bank balances - - 380
Loans 845,00 |« BAS.OD | 282300
Other financial azsalz 6043 078 GE0 .40
Fioating cikrge = -
Cash and cazh equivalants 122.81 |~ FE0 | D44
Man-financial assots
sl charge
Inveniorias 143 B B8 | 4193
| Tatal current assels pledged as socurity a70.02 801.03 4.116.50
Nan-current
Financial assels
First charge z
Security deposilz 1.5% |~ 15y |- 51.58
Nan-tinancial assots
First charge
imanglble Azsals 2,960.03 |- 310487 |~ 3,247 55
Intangible Assels under development - B.05 | 3.28
Hhar non-cunert assets L | .- 2.30 |- 208
Total non-current assets pledged as security [ 2,964.75 | — 311473 | -~ 3 30447
Total assots plodged as security [ 393477 | 401576 742287
Mote 31: Auditors Remuneration
The carrying amounts of azsels pledged as security for cument and non-current borrowings are:
e N 2 Millians
| Merch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
01 Audil Fees” 042 080 0.35

Auditors Remuneration B N 0.42 0.80 ' 0.25
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HNote 32

Maoto 33

Note 34

Mote 35

MNole 38

Maote 37

Contingent Liahilities

As at

Farticulars 31st March, 2017

Ditferencas in balances as per bank lean confirmations and bocks of accounts mainly on accownt
of iMemes! rale resatting are under reconciliation with the bankers. The company expects to setita 2560
these saon and do not articipate any further liabllity on accourt of interest

Arbitration Claims

&) Arbltration with NHAI
Tha comparyy had [nltdated erbitration proceedings against National Highways Authonty of India daiming an amounl of 1,848 95 millicne on

accaunt non-payment of various claima by NHAI inter alia the exended stay costs, loss of revenes end interest for delay on the release of grant
gte. The erbiral ribunal has by way of its Award dated July 7, 2018, inler alia, allowed a sum of € 1,017 35 millans {includes interast af ¥

534 .80 milliors il the dote of 2w pavabée to D5 by NHAL Further, the Tribunal has aleo awarded cost of Arbitration of T 5.92 milliens and an
ksl of 12% from the date of Award till the date of realization if the awarded amaount is not pald within 0 days from the dade of Award
Subsaquently NHAI chabanged the Award before the Hon'ble High Court of Dalbi which is peading I

The managemant of the company baliaves that thair ¢laims are tanabie and are confldent that the arbltration award would tre ir theair Fenvone,

[b) Clalms ralsed by EPC Conlractors |
EPS Contractors hawe made claims sginsl lhe company Gt 2 1,305 74 milkons. The amounts redermad are including interest on dedayed

paymenl. However il has heen agread between the EFC contractors and the company that the paymants for the claims wu:;ult: be made only o
trwr malend o such EPG Contractors claims that have been accapted and paid by MHAL
Eveonts after the reporting year

Thera ara no subsequent events after the reporting year which reguired adjusimenis to the financial statements.

Demonetisation Disclosure

Daotails of Speched Bank Naotes “SEN") neld and transacted dunng the penod G871 172018 o 3000202016 as provided boelow:

2 Milllons
Particulars SBNs Othes denamingted Total
Notes

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 0.00 0.06 D.05
(+] Permitled receipts B.74 35.88 44,39
(=) Perrnitted payments 0,00 p.oa 0.08
(=1 Amount deposited in Banks B.74 3393 | 42,65
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 1.71 | 1.71

Toll Operation and Maintenance Expenses (Refer Note 17)
Tell Cperation and Maimenance Expenses for the year ended March 31, 2017 includes iha follawing:

) In the month of December 2013, due fo heavy floods in the stete of Temil Nadu which had an impact on tha project assels of the company.
Thiz cempany had preferred claim for the loss due to the ficods, Pending settiement of the sama, the amaunis incurrad du:fng the year ended
March 31, 2018 and year ended March 31, 2017 far restoralion of damages at site were booked under advances as Claimg Recesvable. During
the year anded March 31, 2017, the insurance claims wane saitled at T 1749 Milllons. Accordingly the difference of Claims Receivable and the
Insurance Claims achually recaived, amounting to

T 22.70 Millions was charged off to the Statemant of Prafit & Loss undar the head Maintenance of Roads farming part of Toll Operation and
Mzintenance expenaes during the year ended March 31, 2017,

by Pursuant 1o the NIHAI Circular dated November 13, 2016, whonain NHAT prescribed that micro surfacing may be used far the rengwal caurse,
mainienance and repair cn national highways for at least 25% to 30% of the fotal length. Based an the said circular the companys have
eelimated the provieion far Resurfacing expensets in the bboks of accounts.

Demonetisation Claim Note (Refer Note 5e)

Cansequent upan tha de-maonetisation of currency notes by the Central Govamment, tall collection had been suspended Trom November 8,
2015 to December 2, 2018 for which the company had raieed claims on NHAI for reimbursement of the expenses incurred during this penod s
per the prowvisions af the Concaession Agreament entared imo betwean the company and NHAL read adoog with NHAT circular dated Novennbes
78, P06 and Desember 8, 2018 in thes regard  An amount of € 28 14 milliona claimed, being contractusdly enforesable and ceram of reoovcry
has bean recogrised as olher operaling income. As al Maich 31, 2007, T 8.22 millions was receiveble and disclosed under Cbwr Finercsils
Assets - Curent.
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H'DIE_ND 1 |I'H:Dl'|'ll313! cEpense

[a) Income tax expense

Curren! lax

Current taw an profits for the year
Adjustments for currend i2x of prior periods

[ March 31, 2017

T Millions

" March 31, 2‘[}@ ]

Total current tax axpense

Defarrad fax
Deoreascl/imorease) in deferred tax assets
(Decreaseingrease in dulemed tax iabilities

Total deferrod tax oxpense/(benefit)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense is attributable bo:

6.00 |
{0.BZ] %
k] =
13 .08 10.36
| (20.74) TEEY
(3377 58,00
A (26.39) 6800 |

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016 |

Frofit as per ind AS from continuing oparations before income lax exponsc 315 11.24
Income Tax as per efiective Tax Hale of 34 608% 1.09 . 3.89
Tax Effect of Pevmanent timing differancas (2510) (25.10]
Fecognition of Tax Losses {8.76) B8.22
Current tax an Profit for Year £.00 -
Prior Year Tax Adjustiment {0.62] e
Total Tax Expanse (2839 BE00|
{b) Deferred tax balances
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Intangible Azsets 337.BD 358.16 279,34
Loan Processing Costs 2.3 | 3.01
Provision for other labilities - - .16
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Prowvision for other asscts 29.44 16.70 G0.42
Prowision for Retirament of Assets 0.01 - -
rovision for Leave Encashment (.20 {0.11) .04
Unabsarbed losses {(including depreciation) 220.22 220022 165.595
MNet defermed tax liability/{ Asset) (90.28) {124.05) (56.05))
{c} Movement in deferred tax balances: = .
Unabsorbed
D:Fﬁ'::;:ﬂzn losses [including Dihers Total
depreciation)
At April 01, 2015 [279.34) 165 85 57.30 (56.08)
[Charged)feredited
jo profit or loss {7883} 5423 (43.41) (65.00)
o other camprehensive income - - JLRee .00
- Deferred lax on basis adjustment i ENEeT——
At March 31, 2016 (358.16) 220.22 13.89 (124.05)|
ll|'J;‘.I1s|n;la~l;l]f’ll:ﬁ&l::ll-tszi;l:
fa profit or loss 20001 - 1287 33.78
- 1o olher comprehensive incom:a = (0.00) (0.00)
- [Mefarred tax on basis adjustmant i = E——
&t March 31, 2097 {337.26) 220.22 | 20 }"E 1EI-IJ 131.

Motz In ine with the requirements of Ind A5 114, Hequlalnw Deferal Accounts, the enfity prezents the rasullmq deferred tax aasel -.Jmuml:.lj and lhe relaten
movament in thal defermad tax asset (liability) with the relaled regulatory defenal agcount balances and moverments in those | halances, Instead nf within that
presenied above in sooodsnee wilh Ind AS 12 Income Taxes, Refer note 18 for disclosures as per Ind AS 114

Note 39 : During the year, the company had appointed a toll consultant and have re-astimated the tall revenue aver the ramaining concession period, Accoidingly,
Inlengible Assels have been amortised prospectively as per the revisad astimatad 1oll revenue.
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Note 40 Figures for the pravious ysar have been regrouped / reclassified ( rearranged wherever necessary to makp them comparable to
these for the current year

As per our attached report of aven date

For Thakur Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co. For-and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accounlanls =
Firm Regn. No. 030038N -

,75"'
I -
C.‘d.!*arurne{u.rar Kaushik Fal MMadak Blyani Prachi Gupte
Partner Director Directdr Company Secretary
Membarship Mo, 11541 DIN: 05237230 DiIM: 07 371

Flace, Mumbai Flzce: Mumbai
Diate:; 14th April 2017 Data:
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